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Ashland, a handsome plantation house approached by a boxwood walk,
stands on a slight rise in a broad yard dotted with great trees. The house
is in excellent condition and is surrounded by well-tended rolling farmland.
The frame house consists of two gections, side by side, each two stories
high beneath a gable roof running parallel to the front (east) facade. The
two-bay older (north) structure is somewhat lower (about 18 feet to the
eaves) than the south section, which is three bays wide and about 25 feet to
the eaves. The exterior finish of Ashland is consistent throughout both
sections. The house is covered with beaded weatherboards. Each window has
a plain sill and is flanked by symmetrically molded pilasters with a pulvi=-
nated center strip. [These support an entablature that breaks out over the
pilasters and has a narrower pulvinated band across the frieze. Similar
frames occur on the doors as well. Narrow paneled corner posts define each
facade, and the molded cornice is augmented by dentils. The windows at the
first level contain nine-over-nine sash; those at the second, six-over=-nine;
the single gable windows contain four-over-four. The windows of the northern
section are noticeably smaller than those of the southern sesction.

The main doorway, in the north bay of the three-bay south section, is
sheltered by an academic pedimented Tuscan entrance porch, with the columns
grouped in two palrs. The double door, framed by sidelights and a transom,
has a long faceted panel on each leaf. The rear facade has two porches:
one is centrally placed on the north section; the other is in the north bay
of the south section, corresponding to the front porch. Iach has a gable
roof supported by pairs of Tuscan posts on pedestals, connected by a balus-
trade with slender square balusters between rounded rails. The doors are
like the main entrance, but the south one has only sidelights; the north one
is unlighted. Two single shoulder chimneys of brick laid in Flemish bond
rise at each end., Both ends have two bays, but the windows on-the north
flank the symmetrically placed chimneys; on the south the chimneys are to
the rear of center and the windows are placed to the' front and'betwéén them.

The interior of Ashland reflects the changes made by its mid-nineteenth
century ownsrs, which all but conceal the earlier fabric of the older section
The plan of the north section has four rooms: on the east (fyont) are a
stair hall and parlor, and on the west, a small unheated room behind the
hall and the present dining room behind the parlor. The stair hall (now
reached from the main hall of the new section) and the parlor featurs sym-
metrically molded architraves with roundsl corner blocks. The rear rooms
have three-part molded architraves. All rooms have flush-sheathed dadoss
beneath various kinds of chair rails. The doors in the front two rooms and
at the rear entrance have two long panels, bulb those in the rear rooms have
six raised panels. The parlor mantel has pailrs of engaged tapered colonne bt
square in section, supporting paneled end blocks. A symmetrically molded
architrave with plain corner blocks frames the fire opening beneath a frieze
with a plain center tablet. The dining room mantel has symmetrically molded
pilasters and a flat molded band across the frieze.

[

The stair rises in tio short flights at the east end of the hall. The |
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lower part of the wall and the soffit are flush-sheathed, and the closed string

is finished with a wide molded band. Newel and posts, square in section wit?
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molded caps, and turned balusters support a heavy molded handrail. Beneath the
sacond flight is a closet entered through a small six-panel door. The plan of
the sacond floor is essentially like that of the first. The architraves ars
simple molded ones, framing doors with four or six raised panels. Very narrow
molded chair rails and baseboards define the flush-sheathed dado. The two
mantels have reeded architraves with corner blocks below flat-paneled friezes
and plain shelves. In the attic and basement are remnants indicating a possibli
eighteenth century construction date: a few sections of flat-paneled wainscot,
a batten door with strap hinges and wooden lock, and rosehead nails.

The newer section of the house is executed on a much grander scals, and
the trim, with both Greek Revival and unusually heavy Federal elements, is
correspondingly robust. The hall runs along the north side and to the south
are a large front room and two much smaller rear ones. The most striking room
in the house is the wide hall, which is divided by an elaborate transverse
arch supported on heavy paneled pilasters. Acanthus and a beaded astragal
outline the archivolt, The flush-sheathed dado is bounded by a very heavy
molded chalr rail and baseboard. The molded cornice is quite wide. The door
frames are symmetrically molded with a pulvinated center strip; the corner
blocks have faceted panels. The wide doors have seven flat panels: three long
wpper vertical panels, a single horizontal one, and three shorter ones beneathd
They are fitted with carpenter locks. In the front hall ceiling is a large,
handsome medallion with a recessed center featuring egg-and-dart and acanthus
bands. The rear hall is dominated by the impressive stair. The first flight
begins just behind the transverse arch with two treads and three windsrs before
rising in a straight run along the south wall. A long landing spans the
breadth of the hall, and another straight run along the north wall ascends to
the second floor. The wainscot of the hall continues up the stair. Slender
balusters, square in section, and a turned newel and posts support a rounded
handrail. Wave=-pattern brackets adorn the treads; the fascia of the landing
is ornamented by a continuous band of the same design.

The large front first-floor room, said to have been a ballnoom, measures
about 21 by 25 feet. Symmetrically molded architraves with roundel corner
blocks frame the large windows and flat panels beneath. The walls are plasterg
betwean a heavy molded baseboard and an elaborate cornice featuring modillions,
egg-and~dart, and scroll pattern moldings. The celling medallion is like that
in the hall but the center element is of radiating acanthus. The large, plain
mantel is of veined black marble. The south rear room contains a wooden Greek
Revival mantel with symmetrically molded pilasters beneath Greek key corner
blocks. The plan of the second floor is similar, and the finish is simpler,
with six=panel doors whose flat panels have been painted with graining to
simulate raised ones. The mantel in the front room resembles that in the
parlor of the older section.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries, when nearby Williamsboro
(now a nearly deserted village) was a lively social and political center,
the Nutbush Creek area of CGranville County (now in Vance) was occupied by
some of North Carolina's wealthiest and more influential men. Notable
among them was judge and colonizer Richard Henderson, who owned the Ashland
tract. Ashland, one of the most impressive and best-maintained of the
plantation houses in the area, is Vance County's most widely known antebelluym

showplace and landmark.,

J The present Ashland is considered by some to incorporate the house of
Samuel Henderson, who moved to North Carolina from Virginia shortly after
1740, His petition for 100 acres of land in Edgecombe County in 17LL
records his early presence there. According to one historian, Henderson
was appointed one of the first justices of the county court when in 17L6 the
new county of Granville was formed out of Edgecombe. Colonial records in-
clude him in "a list of Gentlemsn in the Commission of the Peace for
-Granyille County, July 6th 1756," which means he was at this time in the
post of justice of the peace. Ashland is thought to have passed from
Sarmuel  Henderson to,his son Richard.

Richard Henderson was born in 1735 in Virginia but grew up at his
father's home in the Nutbush area of Granville County (now Vance County).
Although there were only meagre opportunities for education he prepared
himself for a legal career and after a formidable grilling occasioned by
his lack of formal training was admitted to the bar at an early age. In
1768, Royal Governor William Tryon appointed him associate justice of the
superior court, then the highest court in the colony. Richard Henderson
is best known as the organizer of what was to be an independent colony
called Transylvania. The famous scout, Daniel Boone, explored land for him
between the Kentucky and Cumberland rivers. In 1774 he formed a land
company and bought a tract of more than twenty million acres from the
Cherokees. Henderson established several settlements, but his grand design|
was thwarted when Virginia and North Carolina claimed the land.

In his capacity as crown judge of the superior court Henderson ran
afoul of militant farmers who called themselves "Regulators" 'and who felt
Jjustice was being denied them in the courts. His letter to Governor Tryon !
from "Granville September 29th 1770" describes his encounter and how he

thougnt it "more advisable to breask up court than sit znd be made a mock

i
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judge for the sport and entertainment of those abandoned wretches." Not long
afterwards an entry in colonial records preserves the testimony of Thomas

Henderson, a brother, that "on the night of the Wednesday following being the
1lith instant a house which was lately the dwelling house of said Richard

Henderson was set on fire to and consumed." It is known that Richard Henderson
died in 1785 at his home on Nutbush Creek, so it can be concluded that after
his house was burned, probably by "Regulators," Henderson rebuilt what may have
been the original Ashland.

Richard Henderson's will, proved in 1785, divided his vast holdings among
his children. He devised his home tract to a son, John L. Henderson. This
| property was bought in 1800 by his guardian and kinsman Archibald Henderson
| of Salisbury, a lawyer of great talent and note. It is unclear whether the
"home tract" referred to represents Ashland or another house in which Richard
Henderson may have lived. Another plantation Richard owned, willed to his
daughter Fanny, more nearly fits the location of the present Ashland. This
latter tract is probably that listed in 1832 tax list as 882 acres on Nutbush
Creek belonging to Archibald E. Henderson "of Nutbush" (a nephew of Archibald
of Salisbury and frequently confused with him). Ashland was purchased in 1901
from the executors of Mrs. E. H. Scales (a daughter of Archibald E. Henderson
who had inherited it) by Adolphus E. White. It is now the property of his son,
Lieutenant Colonel Henry White. ,
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